

**Goals, Objectives and Policies  
Recreation and Open Space Element (ROSE)**

**GOAL 1:** [No change to text, page 2]  
PROVIDE SUFFICIENT PARKS, RECREATION FACILITIES AND OPEN SPACE AREAS TO MEET THE NEEDS OF RESIDENTS AND VISITORS OF COLLIER COUNTY.

**OBJECTIVE 1.1:** [No change to text, page 2]  
Continue to ensure that a comprehensive system of parks and recreation facilities is available from among facilities provided by the County, other governmental bodies and the private sector.

**Policy 1.1.1:** [Revised text, page 2]  
~~Collier County hereby adopts the following level of service standards for facilities and land owned by the County or available to the general public:~~

~~LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARD:~~

~~A. 1.2882 acres of community park land/1,000 population (unincorporated)~~

~~B. 2.79412 acres of regional park land/1,000 population~~

The standards for levels of service (LOS) of County parks and recreation facilities appear in Policy 1.5; subsection "G" in the Capital Improvement Element and shall be used as the basis for determining the availability of facility capacity and the demand generated by a development.

~~C. Recreation facilities — Facilities in place, which have a value (as (X) defined) of at least \$270.00 per capita of population. A Construction Cost Index (CCI) adjustment will be used to determine the construction cost of facilities planned. The CCI that will be used will be the prior year of the County's fiscal year budget.~~

~~1. Value will be arrived at using the per unit values for each facility type available in the County, as set forth in the Annual Update and Inventory Report (AUIR), applying the values to the number of each facility type, adding up all values and dividing the total by the County population.~~

~~2. Where recreation facilities provided by other governmental bodies or the private sector are available through arrangement with the County to the public on a convenient basis, they shall be considered in measuring in-place facility value.~~

\*\*\*    \*\*\*    \*\*\*    \*\*\*    \*\*\*    text break    \*\*\*    \*\*\*    \*\*\*    \*\*\*    \*\*\*

**Policy 1.1.5:** [Policy deleted, page2]  
~~Continue to correct or improve existing parks and recreation facilities deficiencies which are necessary in order to meet the level of service standards.~~

**Policy 1.1.5 6:** [Renumbered Policy, page 3]

Words underlined are added; words ~~struck through~~ are deleted.

**OBJECTIVE 1.2:** [No change to text, page 3]  
Protect designated recreation sites and open space from incompatible land uses through development of appropriate design criteria and land use regulations.

\*\*\* \*\* text break \*\*\* \*\*

**OBJECTIVE 1.3:** [No change to text, page 3]  
Continue to ensure that all public developed recreational facilities, open space and beaches and public water bodies are accessible to the general public.

**Policy 1.3.1:** [Revised text, page 3]  
County-owned or managed parks and recreation facilities shall have automobile, bicycle and/or pedestrian access, where the location is appropriate and where such access is economically feasible, with specific consideration given to alternative forms of transportation that would reduce VMT and green house gas.

\*\*\* \*\* text break \*\*\* \*\*

**OBJECTIVE 1.4:** [No change to text, page 3]

**Policy 1.4.1:** [Revised text, page 3]  
Through the land development review process, Collier County shall continue to encourage developers to provide recreation sites and/or facilities within residential and mixed use Planned Unit Developments (PUDs), where appropriate.

**Policy 1.4.2:** [Revised text, pages 3, 4]  
Collier County shall continue to coordinate the provision of recreational facilities and activities with other governmental jurisdictions that own or operate such facilities and activities within, or adjacent to, Collier County. ~~Said governmental entities shall include, but not necessarily be limited to:~~

- ~~U.S. Department of Commerce, The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration~~
- ~~U.S. Department of the Interior, The National Park Service~~
- ~~The Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks~~
- ~~Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Forestry~~
- ~~Lee County, Florida~~
- ~~Hendry County, Florida~~
- ~~Broward County, Florida~~
- ~~Miami Dade County, Florida~~
- ~~Monroe County, Florida~~
- ~~The South Florida Water Management District, Big Cypress Basin Board~~
- ~~The Collier County School Board~~
- ~~The City of Naples, Florida~~
- ~~The City of Marco Island, Florida~~
- ~~Everglades City, Florida~~
- ~~The City of Bonita Springs, Florida~~

Words underlined are added; words ~~struck through~~ are deleted.

**OBJECTIVE 1.5:**

[No text change, page 4]

Through the PUD monitoring process, Collier County shall continue to enforce developer commitments for the provision of parks, recreation facilities and open space.

**Policy 1.5.1:**

[Revised text, page 4]

Collier County shall maintain a current inventory of recreational facility and usable open space commitments made by developers through the development review process.

\*\*\* \*\* text break \*\*\* \*\*

**OBJECTIVE 1.6:**

[No text change, page 4]

Whenever possible and practical, utilize County owned property for recreational uses.

\*\*\* \*\* text break \*\*\* \*\*

**~~GOAL 2:~~**

[Deleted goal, page 4]

~~THE COUNTY SHALL PROMOTE A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK SYSTEM TO MEET THE RECREATIONAL NEEDS OF RESIDENTS WITHIN THE COUNTY.~~

**~~Objective 2:~~**

[Deleted objective, page 4]

~~By the year 2010, the County Parks and Recreation Department will identify general areas where neighborhoods might request sites for future neighborhood parks.~~

**~~Policy 2.1.1:~~**

[Deleted policy, page 4]

~~The Parks and Recreation Department will identify those sites or general areas for neighborhood parks with citizen input to determine the types of recreational facilities particular communities would like to see within their neighborhoods.~~

**~~Policy 2.1.2:~~**

[Relocated policy, page 5]

~~The County shall amend the Land Development Code to require the developer of a residential PUD, or a PUD having a residential component, to provide its residents and guests with a suitable neighborhood park, as determined on a case-by-case basis, which is, as required by Policy 5.4 in the Future Land Use Element, compatible with the surrounding development.~~

**~~Policy 2.1.3:~~**

[Deleted policy, page 5]

~~New neighborhood parks will be carefully sited and intentionally integrated into existing residential neighborhoods, and shall be designed according to the principles of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED), where these principles are appropriate and economically feasible. Neighborhood parks may also be co-located with churches, schools, or other recreational facilities.~~

Words underlined are added; words ~~struck through~~ are deleted.

**Policy 2.1.4:** [Deleted policy, page 5]  
~~The County shall investigate the utilization of tax credits or other incentives for property owners who wish to dedicate land to the County to meet the recreational needs of neighborhood parks.~~

**Policy 2.1.5:** [Deleted policy, page 5]  
~~The County shall encourage the development of pedestrian pathways and bike lanes from the surrounding residential communities to park sites.~~

**GOAL 3:** [Renumbered & revised goal, page 5]  
~~THE COUNTY SHALL DEVELOP A COMMUNITY AND REGIONAL PARK SYSTEM TO PROVIDE USEABLE OPEN SPACE TO MEET THE RECREATIONAL NEEDS OF RESIDENTS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY.~~

**GOAL 3.2:**  
THE COUNTY SHALL PROMOTE A PARK SYSTEM THAT INCLUDES REGIONAL, COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS WITH PEDESTRIAN PATHWAYS AND BIKE LANES TO PROVIDE USEABLE OPEN SPACE TO MEET THE RECREATIONAL NEEDS OF RESIDENTS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY. REGIONAL AND COMMUNITY PARK DEVELOPMENT WILL BE BASED ON THE LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARD (LOSS) CONTAINED IN THE CIE.

**OBJECTIVE 3.2.1:** [Renumbered and revised text, page 5]  
~~By the year 2010~~ In 2011, the Parks and Recreation Department ~~will developed~~ will develop a Community and Regional Park Plan to provide larger parks and recreational facilities as well as passive open space within a 15 to 20 minute drive of residents within the coastal Urban Designated Area, the Immokalee Urban Designated Area, and Northern Golden Gate Estates (this excludes Conservation designated areas, Agricultural/Rural designated areas, Southern Golden Gate Estates, and the outlying Urban Designated Areas of Copeland, Port of the Islands, Plantation Island and Chokoloskee). This plan ~~will include~~ includes the identification of future community and regional park sites (or general areas), park improvements, cost estimates, and potential funding sources. The principles of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) will be integrated into the planning and development of the Community and Regional Park sites.

**Policy 3.2.1.1:** [Renumbered text, page 5]

**Policy 3.2.1.2:** [Renumbered text, page 6]

**Policy 3.2.1.3:** [Renumbered text, page 6]

**Policy 3.2.1.4:** [Renumbered and revised text, page 6]  
The County shall continue to update parks and recreation impact fees to ~~keep pace with increased~~ appropriately reflect land acquisition and development costs for the establishment of community and regional parks.

Words underlined are added; words ~~struck through~~ are deleted.

**Policy 32.1.5:** [Renumbered text, page 6]

**Policy 32.1.6:** [Renumbered text, page 6]

**Policy 32.1.7:** [Renumbered and revised text, page 6]

~~By the year 2010, t~~ The Parks and Recreation Department and the Transportation Services Division will continue to investigate the utilization of the existing canal and power line easements to create a greenway system within the coastal Urban Designated Area, the Immokalee Urban Designated Area, and Northern Golden Gate Estates ~~(this excludes Conservation designated areas, Agricultural/Rural designated areas, Southern Golden Gate Estates, and the outlying Urban designated areas of Copeland, Port of the Islands, Plantation Island and Chokoloskee)~~, as detailed in the adopted Community and Regional Parks Master Plan.